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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

CIN: L28113MH2010PLC312871
Regd. Office: Gala No. 18, Noble Industrial Estate No.1, Navghar, Vasai Road (East),
Palghar, Maharashtra-401202, India
E corporate.india@rhimagnesita.com;www.rhimagnesitaindia.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 37" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Intermetal
Engineers (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, 30 June 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office of the Company situated at Gala No. 18, Noble Industrial Estate No.1, Navghar Vasai Road
(East), Palghar Mumbai - 401202, Maharashtra to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Item no. 1

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended
31 March 2025, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and, in this regard, to consider
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification (s}, the following resolution as an ORDINARY
RESOLUTION:

«“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2025, and the report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.

Item no. 2

To appoint Mr. Parmod Sagar (DIN-06500871), who retires by rotation as a Director and, in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

«“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Parmod Sagar (DIN-06500871), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

By Order of the Board
Intermetal Engineers (Indja) Private Limited

Y
\
 Parmou-Sagar

Chairman
DIN: 06500871

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: 26 May 2025

NOTES:

1s A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE IN THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF, AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested to
send a certified copy of the Board resolution to the Company, authorizing their representative to attend and vote
on their behalf at the meeting.

3. The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at the Company's registered office not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of,
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Your directors have great pleasure in presenting the 37" Annual Report of Intermetal Engineers (India)
Private Limited (“the Company” or “Intermetal”) along with the audited financial statements of the

Company for the financial year (“FY”) ended 31 March 2025 (herein after known as “period under review”).

1: FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS
The highlights of the financial performance of the Company are as under:

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from operations 611.76 665.33
Total Expenses 463.54 496.61
Profit before Tax 227.60 235.06
Tax Expenses 54.83 66.27
Profit after tax 172.77 168.79

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE/ STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS
During the year under review, the revenue earned by your Company from operations was Rs.611.76
lakh as against Rs. 665.33 lakh earned in FY 2023-24, after accounting for the expenditure of Rs.
463.54 lakh as compared to Rs 496.61 lakh in FY 2023-24, your Company has earned the net profit
after tax of Rs.172.77 lakh in the current year as compared to Rs. 168.79 lakh in FY 2023-24.

3. DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of the Company does not propose any dividend in this year.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profits in the statement of Profit and
Loss. For complete details on the movement in reserves and surplus during FY 2024-25, please refer
the statement of changes in equity and note 14 of financial statements for the period under review.

55 DEPOSITS
During the period under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014.

6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the period under consideration, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company.

7. SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH ASHWATH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
On 4 March 2025, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with Ashwath
Technologies Private Limited ("Ashwath") and its shareholders. Under the terms of the agreement,
the shareholders of Ashwath have agreed to sell their entire shareholding to the Company for a total
consideration of Rs.14 crore.
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Ashwath, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, holds Corporate Identity Number
U29254MH2009PTC191946. Its registered office is located at Unit No. 6, S. No. 10, H. No. 1 & 2, Arjun
Velji Udyog No. 1, Waliv, Vasai (East), Thane, Palghar, Maharashtra — 401 208. The company is
engaged in the manufacture of special purpose machinery, with a particular focus on the
metallurgical industry.

The acquisition of Ashwath is expected to strengthen the Company’s presence in the industrial
machinery sector and enhance its capabilities in serving the metallurgical segment. Completion of
the acquisition is anticipated within three months from the date of execution of the SPA.

SHARE CAPITAL

There is no change in the share capital of the Company. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital
of the Company was Rs. 1,59,700/- having 1,597 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100/- each as on
31 March 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONAL (‘KMP?)

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Parmod Sagar (DIN: 06500871) is liable to retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. A resolution
seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-appointment, forms part of the Notice convening the AGM.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 5 November 2024, appointed Mr. Azim Syed (DIN:
10641934) as a Non-Independent, Non-Executive Additional Director of the Company with effect from
the same date. His appointment was subsequently regularized by the shareholders at the 1st
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 15 November 2024. His office shall be subject to retirement by
rotation.

During the period under review, Dr. Vijay Sharma (DIN: 00880113), Chairman of the Company,
tendered his resignation from the Board with effect from 11 November 2024, citing personal reasons.
The Board accepted his resignation and placed on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable
contributions made by him during his tenure.

Following Dr. Sharma’s resignation, Mr. Parmod Sagar (DIN: 06500871) was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company with effect from 12 November 2024.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors convened five (5) meetings on the following

dates: 22 May 2024, 13 August 2024, 5 November 2024, 7 February 2025, and 3 March 2025.

Proper notices were issued for all meetings, and the proceedings were duly recorded and signed in
accordance with applicable regulations.

The details of the Board members and their attendance at these meetings are as follows:

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended/
total meetings held during the F.Y. 2024-25
Dr. Vijay Sharma 3/5
Mr. Parmod Sagar 5/5
Mr. Azim Syed 3/5
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(3)(c) read with section 134(5) of the Companies Act,

2013, with respect to Directors Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confirm that -

- in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

- the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period;

- the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

- the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis,

- the Company being an unlisted company is not required to make a statement on internal
financial controls of the Company and

- the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INCREASE THE LIMITS APPLICABLE FOR MAKING INVESTMENTS / EXTENDING LOANS AND
GIVING GUARANTEES OR PROVIDING SECURITIES IN CONNECTION WITH LOANS TO PERSONS /
BODIES CORPORATE

The members of the Company in their 15t Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 15 November 2024
have accorded their approval pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, for making
investments / extending loans and giving guarantees or providing securities in connection with loans
to persons / bodies corporate up to Rs. 1,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crore only) over and
above the limit of sixty per cent of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium
account of the Company or one hundred per cent of free reserves and securities premium account of
the Company, whichever is more.

CHANGE IN CORPORATE OFFICE AND MAINTENANCE OF BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS

Effective 1 September 2024, the corporate office of the Company has been relocated to 19" & 20™
Floor, DLF Square, M-Block, Phase-ll, Jacaranda Marg, DLF City, Sector 25, Gurugram, Haryana -
122002.

Furthermore, in compliance with the provisions of Section 128 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has commenced keeping and maintaining its books of accounts at the new corporate office
with effect from 5 November 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules 6 and 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary company or joint ventures. The Company is a 100% wholly
owned subsidiary of RHI Magnesita India Limited, and RHI Magnesita N.V. is ultimate holding
company.
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year ended 31 March 2025
were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted. Further, there are no materially
significant related party transactions during the year under review made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors, or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. However, the
disclosure of transactions with related party for the year, as per Accounting Standard on Related Party
Disclosures is given in the note 38 to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2025.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
The auditor has not made any observation in the auditors’ report, so no comment is required from
your directors pursuant to Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act,2013.

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under section 143 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

AND OUTGO

- Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption
Even though operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management has been
highly conscious of the importance of conservation of energy and technology absorption at all
operational levels and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis. The
requirements of disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy and technology
absorption are not applicable to the Company and hence the same has not been provided.

- Technology Absorption
During the period under review, there has been no changes in the technology used by the
Company.

- Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo:
During the period under consideration, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as under:

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Earnings 36.77 27.65
Outgo - -

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
None of the employees has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of
unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of opportunities.

There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
seeks to protect women colleagues against sexual harassment at their workplace.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, the Company
has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the period under consideration.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review, the Company has not provided any loans, guarantees, or securities.
However, the Company has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with Ashwath Technologies
Private Limited and its shareholders for the acquisition of 100% of its shareholding. The total
purchase consideration for this acquisition amounts to Rs. 14 crores, as detailed elsewhere in this
report. This proposed investment falls within the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this
report except to the extent stated hereinabove.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SECURITIES

The Equity shares of the Company have been admitted with National Securities Depository Limited
(“NSDL”) under ISIN No. INE19BN01010 respectively to facilitate the transfer/subscription of shares
of the Company in dematerialized form in terms of the provisions of Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Skyline Financial services Pvt. Ltd.

D-153-A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-|, New Delhi-Delhi-110020
Email: admin@skylinerta.com

Website: www.skylinerta.com

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does not
fall within perview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is not required to
formulate policy on Corporate Social Responsibility.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND
TRIBUNALS

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME
The Company has not issued any Employee Stock Option Scheme.
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30. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As per amendment in Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to prepare extract of annual
return and the Company does not have any active website. Extract of Annual Return for the financial
year ending 31 March 2025 is available for inspection during working hours.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors' would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the support and assistance
extended by the Bankers and various Government authorities at all levels.

Your Directors are thankful to the esteemed Members for their continued support and confidence
reposed in the Company and its management.

By Order of the Board
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

\}} - Cr~

_ Par T&éagar

Place: Gurugram, Haryana Chairman
Date: 26 May 2025 DIN: 06500871
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Intermetal Engineers (India)
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025,
the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2025, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”") specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
SAs are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

. 49122 4451 7249
Q A-112, Sanjay Building No.5, Mittal Industrial Estate, < info@spscollp.com

Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400 059 € www.spscollp.com




Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on other information obtained prior to the date of
our auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we

exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the

Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i

As

required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by

the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act based
on our audit, we report to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

9

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the accompanying financial statements:

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at 31 March 2025;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative
contracts, for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2025;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31
March 2025.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

iv.

vi.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and Dbelief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the management representations under sub-
clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2025.

The audit trail feature did not operate during the period 01 April 2024 to 20
July 2024. Accordingly, the gquestion of commenting on whether the audit trail
was tampered with does not arise. For the period 21 July 2024 to 31 March
2025, based on our examination, which included test checks, the feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility has operated for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software, except that the audit log is not maintained in case of

modification by certain users with specific access and for direct data changes
at the database level.

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its directors during the current

year.

Mumbai, May 26, 2025

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 137904W/W100622

Ankush Shah
Partner
Membership No: 145370

UDIN: 25145370BMNVIX1721
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the

members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025,
we report the following:

(i) (@)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification
program adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
as disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e)  No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year.
In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. We are informed
that no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of

inventory were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been
sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(i)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
investments in, provided any guarantees or security or granted any advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company during the year has
granted interest free unsecured loans to other parties (employees) in respect of
which the requisite information is as below:

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company during the year has granted interest free
unsecured loans to other parties (employees) as below:

(Rs in lakhs)
—
Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount during the year ended
Others {employees) y 0.50

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

Others (employees)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of
the loans granted during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of interest free
unsecured loans given to other parties (employees), in our opinion the
repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have
been regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for
more than ninety days in respect of loans granted during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted
any loans during the year either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.




Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under sections 185 of the Act. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the
loans given, guarantees given, securities provided or investments made are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been
considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(viy  The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business
activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(vi) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise,
Sales tax and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017,
these statutory dues have been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding

at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have
loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025 (Continued)

)

(i)

(xii)

(b)

(d)

(€)

(a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit
procedures, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank
or financial institutions or government or government authority. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken
any term loans from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the Company
has not raised funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations

(b)

given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the

representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no
whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable
to it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, reporting under clause
3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an
internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
them and accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect
of said clause under this report.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 137904W/W100622

4

Ankush Shah
Partner
Membership No: 145370

Mumbai, May 26, 2025 UDIN: 25145370BMNVIX1721
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph (2)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
respect to financial statements based on our audit. WWe conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025 (Continued)
Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with respect to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with respect to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with respect to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 137904W/W100622

HHE

Ankush Shah
Partner
Membership No: 145370

Mumbai, May 26, 2025 UDIN: 25145370BMNVIX1721




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

Particulars As at As at

Nt 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propetty, plant and equipment 4 27394 28019
Intangible assets 5 026 047
Other non-current assets 6 174 019
Total non-current assets ! 275.94 280,85

Current assets

Inventories 7 6187 7777
Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 4705 48 42
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,324 43 1,126 77
Other financial assets - 10 16 07 11 00
Current tax assets (net) 11 23 86 20 54
Other current assets 12 098 253
Total current assets 1.474.26 1.287.03
Total assets - 1,750.20 1,567.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 160 160
Other equity 14 1,658 41 1,487 40
Total equity 1.660.01 1,489.00
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 15 15 89 1375
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 3007 3220
Total non-current liabilities 45.96 45.95

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 17 1217 14 89
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 16 78 671
Other financial liabilities . K 18 884 797
Contract liabilities 19 059 126
Provisions 3 20 059 082
Other current liabilities 21 526 128
Total current liabilities 44.23 32.93
Total liabilities 90.19 78.88
Total equity and liabilities 1,750.20 1,567.88
Summary of material accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 1to 51
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP _ Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 137904W/W100622

Aot

Ankush Shah
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: gl\lziru Sve ".‘ Parmod Sagar

Partner Nreclor Director
Membership No 145370 DIN 106410934 DIN: 06500871
Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 26 May 2025

Date: 26 May 2025 Date: 26 May 2025




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 22 61176 665 33
Other income 23 79 38 66 34
Total income 691.14 731.67
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 339 85 419 29
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 25 1325 (28 50)
Employee benefits expenses 26 5961 5506
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 709 868
Other expenses 28 4374 4208
Total expenses 463.54 496.61
Profit before tax 227.60 235.06
Tax expense 29
- Current tax 5908 64 25
- Deferred tax (154) 341)
- Adjustment in respect of tax of earlier years 270 543
Total tax expense 54.83 66.27
Profit after tax 172.77 168.79
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 239 (8.80)
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 059 221
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (1.76) (6.59)
Total comprehensive income for the year 171.01 162.20
Basic and diluted eaming per share (face value of Rs 100 each) 35 10,818.48 10,569.35
Summary of material accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements lta51

As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 137904W/W100622

Mslf‘

Ankush Shah
Partner
Membership No 145370 o

{_‘\ RHI MAGNESITA
"

Place: Muribai
Date: 26 May 2025
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For and on behalf of the board of directors
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

VAR Jﬁ,
A BA

Direetor
DIN 10641934

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2025

|’ur®éiif-——’

Director
DIN: 06500871

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2025
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Interest income
Sundry balances written back
Provision no longer required written back
Allowance for expected credit loss written back
Sundry balances written off
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Working capital movements:
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Deciease in trade receivables”
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in contract liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid, net
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including movement in capital advances)

[nterest received
Net cash flows generated from investing activities (B)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes to cash flow statement:
I Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand :
Balances with banks
- In current accounts
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months)
Total cash and cash equivalents

227.60 235.06
709 868
(75 95) (66 32)
(0.06) (0 02)
(152)
(145) 131
017 003
155.88 178.74
1590 (24 32)
265 269
(0.14) (0 04)
148 (165)
888 (16 38)
0387 086
(0.60) (2 88)
(0 44) 275
398 Q7D
188.46 137.06
(59 69) (64 98)
128.77 72.09
213) (734)
7102 6105
68.89 53.71
197.66 125.80
1,126 77 1,000 97
1.324.43 1,126.77
- 013
34 43 26 64
1,290 00 1.100 00
1,324.43 1,126.77

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 statement of cash flows u/s 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and the

relevant provisions of the Act

As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 137904 W/W100622

fbist

Ankush Shah
Partner
Membership No 145370

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2025
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For and on behalt of the board of directors
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Parrmd Sag
\Dhirector Director
[N DAL ] 934 DIN: 06500871

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2025

Place Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2025



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital
Current reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the Changes in equity |Restated balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of
current reporting period share capital due to |beginning of the current  |share capital during |current reporting

prior period error reporting period the current period period

1 60 - | 1.60 - 160

Previous reparting period
[Balance at the beginning of the Changes in equity Restated balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of
previous reporting perioed share capital due to beginning of the previous [share capital during |previous reporting

prior period error reporting period the current period period

|
| 160 | . 1 60 S 160

B. Other Equity
Current reporting period
Reserves and surplus Total
Capital reserve Retained earnings
Balance at the beginming of current 0.91 1,486.49 1,487.40
reporting period
Changes 1 accounting policy or priol - - -
period error
Restated balance at the beginning of the 091 1,486 49 1,487 40
current reporting period
Total comprehensive income for the - 171 01 171 01
current period
Balance at the end of current 0.91 1.657.50 1.658.41
reporting period
Previous reporting period
Reserves and surplus Total
Capital reserve Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of previous 0.91 1,324.29 1,325.20
repoiting period
Changes in accounting policy or priot - - -
period error
Restated balance at the beginning of the 091 1,324 29 1,325 20
previous reporting period
Total comprehensive income for the ' - 162 20 162 20
previous period
Balance at the end of previous 0.91 1,486.49 1,487.40
reporting period
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Finn Registration No 137904 W/W100622

Ankush Shah 3‘ ! m)s@ » Par

d Saga
Pariner Director Director
Membership No 145370 DIN: 10641934 DIN: 06500871
Place: Mumbat Place: Gurugiam Place: Gurugram

Date 26 May 2025 Date 26 May 2025 Date: 26 May 2025




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Corporate Information

Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited (‘the Company’) is domieiled and incorporated in India under the
provisions of Indian Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is situated at Gala No. 18, Noble
Industrial Estate No. 1, Navghar, Vasai Road (East), Palghar, Mumbai — 401202. The Company is primarily
engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of slide gate mechanics and related components.

2.1

2.2

. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation and presentation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 are approved by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 26 May 2025.

Basis of preparation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in [nd AS 36.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(Al amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

23

2.4

2.5

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Current Versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose
of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Critical accounting judgements and use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period.
The actual results could differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of revision or future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in the financial statements for e.g.:

Property, plant and equipment

The management engages internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives and residual value of
property, plant and equipment annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded
during any reporting period. The management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual value are
reasonable.

Income taxes

The management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax
assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets / liabilities. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to
significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Contingencies 4

The management’s judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect
of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of
pending matters with accuracy.

Expected credit losses on financial assets:

The impairment provisions of financial assets and contract assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history of collections,
customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (“CGU”) exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for future years and do not include restructuring activities that
the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for
the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.

Investment in equity shares:

The Company is exposed to equity price risk from investments in equity securities measured at fair value
through profit and loss. The Management monitors the proportion of equity securities in its investment
portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual
basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Board of Directors.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of
a constant rate of retum over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature,
requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as
well as expected changes to other income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technique that include the use
of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to existing standards
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as issued from time to time. On 12 August
2024, the MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024,
introducing a new standard, Ind AS 117 — /nsurance Contracts, which replaces the existing Ind AS 104 —
Insurance Contracts.

Consequential amendments have also been made to the following standards to align them with Ind AS 117:
e Ind AS 101 — First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

e [nd AS 103 — Business Combinations

e Ind AS 105 — Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

¢ Ind AS 107 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures

e Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

e Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has evaluated the impact of these amendments, and, in the opinion of the management, they
do not have any material effect on its financial statements.

N\
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3. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

3.1

3.2

3.3

Property, plant and equipment

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of
assets as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on past experience and internal technical evaluation,
the management believes that these useful lives represent the appropriate period of usage and therefore,
considered to be appropriate for charging depreciation. Depreciation on addition (disposal) is provided on a
pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which assets is ready for use (disposed of).

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at the end of financial year
considering the physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjusts
residual life prospectively.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit and loss within other income.

Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. Following initial
recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset
is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.
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3.4

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are
carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was
determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items of
Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise
except those arising from investments in non-integral operations.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (on first in first out basis in respect of trading goods and on
weighted average basis in respect of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods) and the net
realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost
includes all charges in bringing the goods, including freight, octroi and other levies. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Stores and spares inventory is valued at cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation by transfer of control of promised product or service to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Control is
defined as the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from an asset.
Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the expected consideration to be received, to
the extent that it is highly probable that there will not be a significant reversal of revenue in future periods.
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, at the inception of the contract, the Company
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer.

At the inception of the contract, the Company identifies the goods or services promised in the contract and
assess which of the promised goods or services shall be identified as separate performance obligations.
Promised goods or services give rise to separate performance obligations if they are capable of being
distinct.

Revenue from the delivery of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is
passed to the customers, which is determined based on the individual Incoterms agreed in the customer
contract.

Contract balances:

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as
unbilled revenue. A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.
Contract asset, which is presented as unbilled revenue, is classified as non-financial asset as the contractual
right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. Contract liabilities include, and are
presented as ‘Revenue received in advance’ and ‘Advances from customers’.

Other Income

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate
method.
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3.8 Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i.

Oy
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as:

e Debt instruments assets at amortised cost

e Equity instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement
of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit and loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income
(i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) if both the

following conditions are met:

e the asset is held to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its
contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes), and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI™) on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in
the profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through OCI unless

the asset is designated at fair value through profit and loss under fair value option.

e The financial asset is held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

[nstruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCl. However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Profit and Loss.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for tompany’s investment instruments. Any instruments which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

All investments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Profit and Loss

In addition, the company may elect to designate an instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company has not made any such election. This classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOC], then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.
Equity investment in subsidiary are measured at cost.

Derecognition

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
e Based on above evaluation, either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a bases that reflect the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 (‘Financial instruments’) requires expected credit losses to be measured
through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and /
or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an
amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

ii. Financial liabilities

ii.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss or at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3.9

3.10

iv. Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model
as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for
recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provision are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. [nformation on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the
Financial Statements

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.11 Employee benefits

@

(i)

Short-term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. All short-term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis
during the accounting period based on services rendered by employees and recognized as expenses in
the Statement of profit and loss. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These benefits include salary
and wages, bonus, performance incentives, etc.

Long-term employee benefits (Post-employment benefits):
The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified
as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and employees’ state insurance scheme
are defined contribution schemes. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable
to the fund. Payments to defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans — Gratuity:

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation. '

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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(iif) Other benefits (Compensated absences):
Accumulated compensated abserices, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the
same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

3.12 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker.
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4 Property, plant and equipment 0

Particulars Factory Factory Plant and Furniture and Office Computers Toral
land premises machinery fixtures equipments

Gross block:
As at 31 March 2023 230.77 110.62 3.68 2.53 4.49 7.07 359.16
Additions - 014 522 034 164 - 734
Disposals = - - = . . "
As at 31 March 2024 2_30.77 110,76 8.0 17 613 7.07 Jints, 50
Additions - - 008 028 Q27 - 063
Disposals =5 = = . : g =
As at 31 March 2025 23,77 L. 76 .9% 3.15 G40 .07 36713
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 31 March 2023 - 70.52 0.92 045 1.65 4.29 77.84
Charge for the year - 578 033 024 077 135 847
Disposals - . - < ) a -
As at 31 March 2024 - T30 1.25 .69 242 504 86,31
Charge for the year - 425 051 028 097 087 6 88
Disposals - = S 3 £ = 5
As at 31 March 2025 - 80.55 .76 0,97 339 651 0319
Net block:
As at 31 March 2024 230.77 346 7.65 218 3mn 1.43 280,19
As at 31 March 2025 230.77 30.21 7.22 218 XL .56 27304
Note:

The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company
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5 Intangible assets

Particulars - Softwares
Gross block:

As at 31 March 2023 1.10
Additions =
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2024 110
Additions -
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2025 1.10

Accumulated amortization:

As at 31 March 2023 0.42
Charge for the year 021
Disposals .

As at 31 March 2024 0.63
Charge for the year 021
Disposals e
As at 31 March 2025 0.84
Net block:

As at 31 March 2024 0.47
As at 31 March 2025 0.26
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6 Other non-current issets

Particulars . As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Prepaid expenses 004 010
Security deposits 020 009
Capital advances 150 -
L.74 0.19

7 Inventories
(At cost or nef realisuble value whichever is lower)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Raw materials 047 3312
Work in progress 7 83 20 80
Finished goods {including goods-i-transit of Rs Nil (31 March 2024 Rs Nil)} 53 57 53 85
61.87 77.77

8 Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, considered good:
Receivables from others 3951 4291
Receivables from related parties (Refer note 38) 794 T3
47.45 50.27
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (040) (1.85)
47.05 48.42

Refer note 33 for information about credit risk and market risk of trade receivables
For trade receivable ageing, refer note 40

9 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash on hand - 013
Balances with banks
In cwrent accounts 3443 26 64
I deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 1,290 00 1,100 00
1.324.43 1,126.77

10 Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, considered good:
Loans and advances to employees 028 014
Interest accrued on deposits 1579 10 86
L6.07 11.00

Refer note 33 for information about credit risk and market risk of other financial assets

11 Current tax assets (net)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of provision o 23.86 20 54
23.86 20.54

12 Other current assets

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with govermment authorities 018 097
Prepaid expenses 080 156

0.98 1.53
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13 Equity share capital

Particulars As at As at
- 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Authorised:

3.000 (31 March 2024 S 000) equity shares of Rs 100 each 500 500

5.00 5.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up:

1,597 (31 March 2024 1,597) equity shares of Rs 100 each, fully paid-up .60 160
16 1,60
a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear:
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,597 160 1,597 1 60
Add: Share issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding as at the end of the year 597 L.60 1.597 L60
Iy} Rights, preflerence and restrictions attached to the equity shares:
The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 100 each Each holder of equity shaies 1s entitled 10 one vote per share [n the event of liquidation of
the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recerve any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts The
distribution will be m proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehotders
¢) Details of shares held by the holding company
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of shares “u Holding No. of shares % Holding
Equity shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up held by
M/s RHI Magnesita India Limited 1357 100 00% 1397 100 G0t e
(including 1 share held by Mr Parmod Sagar as noimunee)
d) List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of shares Yo Holdi Mo of shares Yo Holding
Equity shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up held by
M/s RHI Magnesita India Limited 1.397 100 00% 1,597 1H5) 0%,
(inctuding 1 share held by Mr Parmod Sagar as nominee)
e) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters
Equiry shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up
Promater's name Shareholding % change during the year
No. of shares | % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
M/s RHI Magnesita India Lumited 1.597 100 00% - -
|lincluding | share held bv Mr Parmod Sagar s noninee) 11397} (100 00%)

(figures in bracket denote previous Year fiuires)

I} The Company has neither alloted any fully paid-up equity share by way of bonus shares, or n pursuant to contract without payment being recerved in cash nor has bought
back any class of equity shares during the period of five vear immediately preceding the balance sheet date

14 Other equity

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Retamed earmngs 1,657 50 1486 49
Capital redemption reserve 09! 091
1.658.41 1.487.40
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the vear 1,486 49 1,324 29
Add: Total comprehensive income for the year 171 0l 16220
Balance at the end of the year L.637.50 1, 486,49

Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the vear
Add Additon during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 4] [LE]]

Retained earnings:
Retained earmings 1epresents surplus / accumulated earnings of the Company aund are available for distribution to shareholders Further, 1t also includes the impact of
remeasurements of the defined benefit obligations, net of tax

Capital redemption reserve:
During financial year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2019, the Company bought back certam shares and 1 order to comply with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company created Capitai Redemption Reserve
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15 Provisions (Non-current)

Particulars = As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (Refer note 31) 1182 9 00
Leave obligation (Refer note 31) 407 475
15.89 13.75

16 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment 36 26 3807

Total deferred tax liabilities - (A) 36.26 38.07

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for expected credit loss 010 047
Expenses allowed on payment basis under [ncome-tax Act, 1961 6 09 540
Total deferred tax assets - (B) 6.19 5.87
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - (A-B) 30.07 32.20

17 Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 30) 1217 14 89
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 16 78 671
28.95 21.60

For trade payable ageing, refer note 41

18 Other financial liabilities (Current)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Employee dues payable 8 84 797
8.84 7.97

19 Contract liabilities

Particulars 1 As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advance from customers 0539 126
0.59 1.26
20 Provisions (Current)
Particulars As at As at
3t March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for employee benefits:
Leave obligation (Refer note 31) 059 082
.59 .82

21 Other current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory liabilities 526 128

5.26 1.28
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22 Revenue from operations

Particulars - For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contract with customers:
- from related parties (Refer note 38) 5159 55 66
- from others 55966 609 32
61125 664 98
Other operating revenue:
Government incentives on export 051 035
611.76 Hhi5.33

Disaggresation of revenue:
In the following tables, revenue 1s disaggregated by product group and by geography The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts

how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors

Disageregation of revenue by product group

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Shaped products 61125 664 98
Others 051 035
611.76 665.33

Disagprepation of revenue by geoeraphy:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within [ndia * 568 91 629 96
Outside [ndia 4285 353317
61176 665.33

* Inclusive of merchant export of Rs 28 57 lakhs duning the year (Previous year: Rs 26 50 lakhs)

Timing of revenue recogmition:
Revenue from sale of products is transferred to the customers at a pont m time

Performance obligations

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is passed to the customers, which is
determined based on the individual Incoterms agreed in the customer contract. Control is defined as the ability to direct the use and obtain
substantially all the economic benefits from an asset

Uransacuon price allocated to the remmmng performance obheations
Transaction price is the expected consideration to be received m exchange for transferring goods or services. to the extent that it is highly
probable that there will not be a sigmificant revetsal of revenue

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract price 61176 e

Adjustments for:

Claims and rebates - -

Performance bonus - -
611.76 665.33

Trade receivables and contract balances:

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as contract asset

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time

Contract assets primarily relate to the Company’s right to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date Contract
assets are transferred to receivables when the right become unconditional

Contract liabilities consists of advance from customers Contract liabilities are presented in note 19

Trade receivables are presented net off loss allowance in note 8
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Movement in contract balances:

Particulars - For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at

the beginning of the year

Revenue from contract with customers - -

Total - -

Movement in contract assets:

Opening balance at the begiuning of the year - B
Add: Revenue recognized during the year - =
Less: Invoiced during the year - e
Closing balance at the end of the year o -

Movement in contract liabilities:

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 126 414
Add: Collection during the year 31118 31241
Less: Gross Sales 31179 31527
Less: Sundry balances written back 006 002
Closing balance at the end of the year 0.59 1.26

23 Other income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on term deposits 7595 66 32
Sundry balances written back 006 002
Provision no longer required written back 1552 -
Allowance for expected credit loss written back 145 -
Sale of scrap 040 -

79.38 66,34
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24 Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less Inventory of materials at the end of the year

25 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

312 730
33720 41511
340 32 422 41

047 312
339.85 419.29

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

(Increase) / Deerease in inventories
Inventory at the end of the year:
Work in progress
Finished goods

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Work in progress
Finished goods

26 Employee benefits expenses

783 20 80
5357, 5385
6140 74 65
20 80 12 85
53 85 3330
74 65 4615
13.25 (28.50)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 31)
Gratuity (Refer note 31)

Leave obligation (Refer note 31)

Staff welfare expense

27 Depreciation and amortization expense

50 67 4561
289 310
267 135
(091) 327
429 173

59.61 35,06

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2028

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization on intangible assets

28 Other expenses

6.88 847
021 021
7.09 8.68

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Foreign exchange loss (net)
Power and fuel

Legal and professional fees
Director sitting fees
Computer expenses

Repair and maintenance

- building

- plant and machinery

- others

Postage and communication
Travelling and conveyance
Internet charges

Insurance

IT expenses

Rates and taxes

Payment to auditors (Refer note 37)
Sundry balances written off
Bank charges

Printing and stationery
Freight and transport charges
Allowance for expected credit loss
Office expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

L 005
184 163
6.50 564
075 100
171 157
073 028
. 012
026 057
0.84 099
760 634
008 008
123 268
237 -
352 061
489 490
017 003
055 0.03
088 140
848 1213
- 131
082 06l
052 0n

43.74 42.08
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29 Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are

Statement of profit and loss section

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Current income tax:

Current imcome tax charge 59 08 64 25

Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous years 270 543

Deferred tax:

Relattng to origination and reversal of temporary differences (154) (341)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 54.82 66.27

Other comprehensive income section

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 059 221
54.23 64.06

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Accounting profit before tax 227 60 23506
Computed tax expense 5728 59 16
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25 168% (31 March 2024: 25 168%)

Adjustments for:

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating income (net) 008 001
Adjustment in respect of cuirent tax of previous years 271) 543
Others (042) (054)
At the effective income tax rate 54.23 64.06
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 54.23 64.06

Deferred tax relates to the following

Particulars Balance sheet

Statement of profit and loss /
Other Comprehensive income

As at As at For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 3t March 2024
Property, plant and equipment (36.26) (3807) 181 221
Allowance for expected credit loss 010 047 (037) 033
Expenses allowed on payment basis under lncome-tax Act 609 540 069 308
Net deferred tax expense / (income) 2.13 5.62
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (30.07) (32.20)
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax liabilities (36 26) (3807)
Deferred tax assets 619 587
Deferred tax liabilities, net (30.07) (32.20)
Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities) / assets, net
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance as of April 1 (3220) (37 82)
Tax (income) / expense during the vear recognised in staternent of profit and loss (154) (341)
Tax (income) / expense during the year recognised in other comprehenstve income (0.59) (221)
Closing balance (30.0M) (32.20)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only 1f it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
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30 Dues to micro and small enterprises

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2025 March 2024
(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid 12.17 13.37

as at period end i

(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year = :
end

(iii) Principal amount paid to supplier registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the -
appointed day during the year.

(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under s
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(v) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED =
Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments -
already made

(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for carlier years - 152

———
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N
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31

()

(ii)

B.

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan: .

The Company makes contributions, determmed as a specified percentage of employees salaries, m respect of qualifying employees towards provident
fund and employees state insurance. which are defined contribution plans. The obligation of the Company is Limited to the amount contributed and it
has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation The expense recognised during the vear are as under:

Contribution to provident and other funds:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contribution to provident fund 281 2 80
Contribution to employee state insurance 008 030
2.89 3.10

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity:

The Company provides for pratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the company makes
contribution to recogmsed funds in India The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains the target ley el of funding to be maintained over
a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments The gratuity fund plan assets of the Company are managed by [ntermetal
Engineers (India) Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity Scheme through LIC Gratuity Group Plan

Particulars As at As at

3t March 2025 31 March 2024
Funded

Changes in Defined Benefit Obligation

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 2879 1747

Current service cost 212 129

Interest cost 181 129

Benefit paid - -

Actuarial (gain) / loss 2553 874

Defined Benefit Obligation at end of year 35.25 28.79

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 1979 16.74
Expected return on plan assets 126 124
Employer contribution 220 1.87
Benefit paid - -

Actuarnial gain / (loss) on plan assets 018 (0 06)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 23.43 19.79

Net Defined Benefit Asset / (Liability)

Present value of obligation at the end ' 3525 2879
Fair value of plan assets 2343 1979
Unfunded liability / provision in Balance Sheet 11.82 9.00

Total expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 25102 129
Interest cost 1 81 129
Interest income (126) (123)
Total expense recognised under employee benefit expense 2.67 1.35

Total expense recognised in OCI
Actuanial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation arising from change in demographic asswmption - -

Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation arising from change in financial assumption (253) (874
Actuarial (gain) / loss of plan assets 018 (0.06)
Unrecognised actuarial (gain) / loss at the end of year (2.35) (8.80)

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount rate 6 40% 6.95%
Salary escalation rate 10% for | year. 8%  10% for 2 years, 8%
thereafter thereafter

Withdrawl rate 5 00% 5.00%
Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) LALM (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate

Retirement age (Years) 58 58

Assumptions regarding future motality rate for gratuity is based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and expenence
Expected contribution for the next one year
The Company expects to contribute Rs 2 46 lakhs (Previous year: Rs 2 12 lakhs) to its gratuity plan in the next year
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D.

Employee benefits (Continued)

Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

(i) Otol Year 625 547
(i) 1to2 Year 143 122
(iii) 2 to 3 Year 153 126
(iv) 3to 4 Year 158 133
(v) 4105 Year 162 137
(vi) 5to 6Year 167 141
(vi1) 6 Year onwards 54 58 4792
68.66 59.98
Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate
a Rate + 0 50% - the liability to decrease to 33 80 2761
b Rate - 0 50% - the liability to increase to 36 80 3005

Salary escalation rate
a Rate + 0 50% - the liability to increase to 36 76 3003
b Rate - 0 50% - the liability to decrease to 3382 2762

Attrition rate
a Rate N A - the hability to increase to
b Rate N A - the liability to decrease to - -

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other asswmptions constant In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the Defined benefit recognised in the balance sheet The methods and types of assumptions used

in preparation, the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period

Risk Exposures:
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company ts exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability Increase in salary escalation rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the liability

Investment Risk: [f Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability

Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability
Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities

Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact Plan’s liability ’

Defined benefit liability and employer contribution
The Company monitors the deficit in defined benefit obligation (net off plan assets) and endeavours to meet such deficit within reasonable future The
objective is to ensure adequate investments of funds, at appropriate time, to generate sufficient corpus for future payments

Other long-term employee benefits

Leave obligations

The leave obligation cover the company’s liability for earned leave

The Company has recognised an amount of Rs (0 91) lakhs (31 March 2024 - Rs 3 27 lakhs) as an expense towards leave obligation and included in
‘Employee benefits expense” in the Statement of Profit and Loss The Company has determimed the liability for leave obligation based on the actuanial
valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method
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32 Segment reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing slide gate mechanics and related components Based on the information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resources’ allocation and assessment of performance, there is single
business segment in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended

Geographical Segments:

The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers The Company operates primarily in India and
has presence in international markets as well Its business is accordingly aligned geographically, catering to two markets i e India and Outside
India. For customers located outside [ndia, the Company has assessed that they carry same risk and rewards. The Company has considered
domestic and exports markets as geographical segments and accordingly disclosed these as separate segments The geographical segments
considered for disclosure are as follows:

- Sales within India include sales to customers located withun India

- Sales outside India include sales to customers located outside India

Secondary Segment Reporting (by Geographical Segments)

The following is the distribution of the Company’s total revenue of operations by geographical market. regardless of where the goods were

produced

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Within India * a 568 91 629 96

Outside [ndia 42 85 3537

611.76 665.33

* Inclusive of merchant export of Rs 28 57 lakhs during the year (Previous year: Rs 26 50 lakhs)

The following table shows the carrying amount of trade receivables by geographical segments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2025

Within India 47 05 48 42

Outside [ndia 000 -

Tl 1 47.05 4842

All other assets (other than trade receivables) used in the Company’s business are located in India and are used to cater to both the categories
of customers (within India and outside India), accordingly the total cost incurred during the year to acquure tangible and intangible fixed assets
has not been disclosed

Information about major customers
There is Nil (31 March 2024: 1) customer contributing in excess of 10% of the total revenue of the Company for the vear ended 31 March
2025 (31 March 2024: Rs 72 12 lakhs)
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33 Financial instruments - [air value measurement

Accounting classifications and fair values

Particuliirs B As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Carrying Value Fair value  Carrying Value Fair value
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 4705 4705 4842 48 42
Cash and cash equivalents 1,324 43 1,324 43 1,126 77 1,126 77
Other financial assets 16 07 16 07 1100 1100
Total financial assets 1,387.55 1,387.55 118614 1,186.19
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cos(
Trade payables 28 95 2895 21 60 21 60
Other financial Liabilities 8 84 884 797 797
Total financial liabilities 37.79 37.79 29.57 29.57

The management assessed that carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair value largely due to the nature and short-term maturities of these instruments

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for (dentical assets or llabilittes

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or Liability, either directly (i e as prices) or indirectly (1 e derived from
prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or Liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Financial instr - risk m. nt
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments credit nisk (refer note (b) below). iquidity risk (refer note (c) below); market risk
(refer note (d) below)

(a) Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework The Company's risk
management policies are established to wdentify and analyse the nisks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk linuts and controls and to monitor risks and adherence
to limuts Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities

The Company’s board oversees how management momtors comphance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, anms to maintain
a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivatent and bank balances 1s not significant as 1t majorly includes deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies

Credit 115k arise from possibility that customer may defaull on its obligation to make timely payments, resuliing into financial loss The maximum exposure to the credit
risk 1s primarily from trade recervables

The credit nsk is managed by the Company through credit term approvals, establishing the financial reliability of the customers taking into aceount the financial condition,
analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account recervables Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored Individual credit terms are set accordingly by
the Company's credit control department

i) Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment for customers as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not Limited to
past payment history. securtty by way of deposits. audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow projections) and applying experienced credit
judgement The following table provides mformation about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Not due 27 88 3361
0-30 days 1453 1391

31-60 days 184 -
61-90 days 150 000
91-180 days 169 258
181-240 days - 000
More than 240 days 00! 018
47.45 50.28

Loss allowance provision - trade receivables

Particulars Amount
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2023 0.54
Changes in loss allowance (Refer note 28} 131
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2024 1.85
Changes n loss allowance (Refer nate 23) (145)

Loss allowance as on 31 March 2025 0.40
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Financial instruments - fair value measurement (Continued)

ii) Cash and cash equivalents .

The Company holds cash and cash equvalents of Rs 1,324 43 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 Rs 1,126 77 lakhs) The cash and cash equivalents are mainly
held with banks The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit nisk based on the external credit ratings of counterparties

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity misk 1s the nisk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet 11s obligations on time The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are cash generated from
operations The cash flows from operating activities are driven primarily by operating results and changes in the working capital requirements

The Company beheve that its liquidity position 1s adequate to fund the operating and invesling needs and to provide with flexibility to respond to further changes n the
business environment '

Maturities of financial liabilities

Particulars Carrying Total 0-12 months 1-2 vears 3-5 years > 5 years
amount

As at 31 March 2025

Trade payables 2895 2895 2895 - -
Other financial habilities 884 884 884 - - -
37.79 37.79 37.79 - = =
Particulars Carrying Total 0-12 months 1-2 vears 3-5 years > 5 years
amount

As at 31 March 2024

Trade payables 2160 21 60 21 60 - - =
Other financial habilities 797 o7 797 - - -
29.57 20,57 29.57 - - -

(d) Market risk

Market nisk 1s the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, which will affect the Company's income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments The objective of market risk management 1s to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optirmusing the return

i) Currency risk

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk n relation to operating activities {when revenue or expense ts denomunated in a foreign
currency) ansing from foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency risk exposure

The Company does not have any foreign currency denominated receivables or payables as at the end of reporting year and accordingly does not have any foreign currency
nisk

ii) [nterest rate risk

The Company does not have any borrowings and accordingly does not have any interest rate risk

iii) Price risk -

The Company does not have any investments as at reporting date and accordingly does not have any price risk

Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a gomg concern, so that 1t can continue to provide adequate returns to the
shareholders
The Company does not have any borrowings and the entire capital comprises of equity
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Earnings per share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and dilutive eamings per share

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of shares
Eamings per share, basic and diluted (Rupees)

17277
1,597
10,818 48

168.79
1,597
10,569 35

Note: Basic and diluted earnings per share during the current year are same as the Company has no potentially dilutive equity shares outstanding

as at the year end

Reconciliation of shares used in computing earnings per share

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

No of equity shares at the beginning of the year 1.597 1,597

Add: Shares issued during the year = - -

No of equitv shares at the end of the year 1,597 1,597

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 100 each used for calculation of basic and 1.597 1.597

diluted eamings per share

Contingeat liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities:

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: Nil (Previous year: Nil)

Commitments:

Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net of advances)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Property, plant and equipment 040 =

Payment to auditors

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory audit fees 320 294
Limited review fees 1 68 1 44
Other matters - 0350
Out of pocket expenses 001 002
4.89 4.90
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Related party disclosure
Names of related parties and description of relationship

Related parties where control exists

RHI Magnesita India Limited, Holding Company

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Mr Vijay Sharma Non-executive director {(upto L1 November 2024)
Mr Parmod Sagar Non-executive director

Mr Azim Syed Non-executive director (w e f 5 November 2024)

Related parties transactions entered inta by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Sales

RHI Magnesita India Liumited * 5023
* Amount disclosed is inclusive of freight and

transport charges of Rs 0 37 lakhs (Previous year:

Rs 0 96 lakhs)

RHI Refractories Africa (Pty) Ltd 173

Purchases
RHI Magnesita India Limited 085

Reimbursement of expenses
RHI Magnesita India Limited # SET,

# Represents reimbursement towards group medclaim expense & IT Cost
incurred on behalf of the Company

Compensation of key management personnel
Director sitting fees
-Mr Vijay Sharma 075

4797

100

Related party balances
Amounts due to or due from related parties are as follows:

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Trade receivables

RH1 Magnesita India Limited i 794
Reimbursement of expenses payable
RHI Magnesita India Limited 527

737

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributicns by the Company towards
Provident Fund and Grawity The Ministry of Labour and Employnent has 1eleased draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on
November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry The Company will
assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in

which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
40 Trade receivable ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2025:

Particulars Not due Less than | 6 Months-| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than Total
6 Months 1 Year 3 Years

Undisputed trade receivable - considered good 27 89 19 55 - = 001 - 47.45
Undisputed trade receivable - which have -

significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - = % &
Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - s = 3 = =
Disputed trade receivable - which have - . - - - . =
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - - -

Total 27.89 19.55 - - 0.01 - 47.45
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (0.40)
Total trade receivables 47.05

As at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Not due Less than | 6 Months -| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than Total
6 Months 1 Year 3 Years
Undisputed trade receivable - considered good 33 61 16 49 000 014 004 - 50.28

Undisputed trade receivable - which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - = & F

Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - - = ~ " N

Disputed trade receivable - which have - - - E - - =
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - - E

Total 33.61 16.49 0.00 0.14 0.04 - 50.28
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (1.85)
Total trade receivables 48.43

41 Trade payable ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2025:

Particulars Unbilled Not due | Less than 1| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
vear 3 Years
MSME 358 815 - - - - 11.73
Others 1071 518 019 - - 07l 16.78
Disputed dues - MSME . - - 044 - - - 0.44
Disputed dues - Uthers - - - - - - -
Total 14.29 13.33 0.63 - - 0.71 28.95

Asat 31 March 2024;

Particulars Unbilled Not due | Less than 1| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
vear 3 Years
MSME 446 10 43 . - - - 14.89
{hers FaL T 2.74 .69 - - D71 6.71
Disputad dues - MSME - - . = = = =
Disputed dues - Others = = = = = a B

Toral 7.04 13.17 .69 - - 0.71 21.60
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Subsequent events
There are no subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date of this financial statements

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I1I

Details of benami property held:

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property

Wilful defaulter:
The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or Financial institution or other lender during the year

Relationship with struck off companies:
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Borrowing secured against current assets:
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:
A The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

B The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beuneficiaries

Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The Company does not have any subsidiary, hence compliance with number of layers of companies is not applicable to the
Company

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year

Loans or advances in the nature of loans to specified persons:
There are no outstanding loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, Directors, key management personnel and
their related parties (as defined under Companies Act. 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person

Compliance with approved Scheme of Arrangement:
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial
year

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency:
The Company has not traded or invested 1n Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

Undisclosed income:

The Company does not have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company
during the year

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including dertvative contracts for which there were any foreseeable losses
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49 In the opinion of the board of directors, assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the business
at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provision for all known liabilities have been made

50 The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 03 March 2025 approved execution of Share Purchase Agreement
(“SPA”) between the Company, Ashwath Technologies Private Limited (“Ashwath”) and shareholders of Ashwath, to acquire
100% shareholding of Ashwath from its existing shareholders for a consideration of Rs 14 crore (the Company, Ashwath and
shareholders of Ashwath hereinafter together referred to as “the Parties”) SPA was executed between the Parties on 04 March
2025 As per terms of SPA, the transaction was to be completed within 30 calendar days from the exccution date, but no later than
three months from the execution date This period may be extended by mutual agreement of the Parties As on the date of these
financial statements, only SPA is entered between the Parties and the Company is in the process to consummate the transaction
Accordingly, control is not transferred and hence no accounting impact is considered in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025

51 Previous year's figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / restated / reclassified, wherever necessary, to confirm to the current year's

presentation
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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